
Rye City Planning Commission Minutes 
August 9, 2016 

 
MEETING ATTENDANCE:  
Planning Commission Members: Other: 

 Nick Everett, Chair  Christian K. Miller, AICP, City Planner 
 Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair  Carolyn Cunningham, CC/AC Chair 
 Andrew Ball  Melissa Johannessen, AICP, LEED AP 
 Laura Brett   
 Hugh Greechan   
 Richard Mecca        
 Alfred Vitiello        

 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

 
I. HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 
II. ITEMS PENDING ACTION 
 
1. 167 Purchase Street 
 

 Mr. David Mooney, architect, was present for the application. Mr. Mooney briefly 
described the application, stating that it is a site plan application to add a surgery 
center on the north portion of an existing building. He stated that it would be a 
one-story addition to accommodate two surgery suites where outpatient eye 
surgery would be performed. He stated that the medical practice is shifting away 
from eye exams and more toward surgery. Mr. Mooney stated that the rear yard 
is currently nonconforming and the project will require side yard and rear yard 
variances. 

 
 Mr. Mooney stated that there are currently six doctors in the building: two are 

psychologists that work at night; two are not in the practice; and two are in the 
practice. He stated that the applicant anticipates an increase to three doctors 
once the addition is completed.  

 
 Mr. Mooney noted that the proposed parking does not comply with the standards. 

He stated that the existing curb cut will be used. He also noted that there will be 
an ambulance parking area, and that area combined with a proposed handicap 
parking space will provide enough room for vehicles to turn around. 

 
 The Commission asked about the proposed stormwater system and Mr. Mooney 

stated that Cultecs would be provided to serve the addition.  
 

 The City Planner stated that the parking will be closer to the property line, and he 
wants to ensure that there is no impact to adjacent properties. 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
August 9, 2016 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

1 

3 
4 
5 
6 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 

44 

 
 The Commission asked if the property was in the flood zone and Mr. Mooney 2 

stated that it is not. The Commission also asked how trash would be handled. Mr. 
Mooney stated that it is currently picked up in the front of the building and will be 
handled the same way. 

 
 The Commission commented on the amount of proposed parking. The City 7 

Planner asked Mr. Mooney to provide a narrative explaining the current operation 
of the medical practice and what it would be under the proposed application. He 
stated that the resolution should include a condition about the number of doctors 
working at the site at any given time. The City Planner noted that West Med 
exceeded the parking requirement by two times and still does not have enough 
parking. 

 
 Mr. Mooney stated that there are currently 32 parking spaces and 22 spaces are 

proposed. He also noted that there is also on-street parking available. The City 
Planner asked him to characterize the existing parking demand. He stated that 
since procedures will be done onsite that are currently handled off-site, there 
could be an increase in parking demand. 

 
 Mr. Mooney replied that only two surgeries can happen at a time, and each 

person undergoing surgery has to get through surgery and recovery before 
another surgery can begin. He stated that there may actually be less demand 
than what currently exists. The City Planner asked Mr. Mooney to put those kinds 
of details in the narrative. 

 
 The Commission stated that more information is needed on drainage and 

landscaping. It was also noted that the existing drainage needs to be described. 
The Commission stated that a preliminary drainage plan would be sufficient. The 
City Planner stated that there is a concern about parking being closer to the wall 
on the east side of the property and whether the wall can handle the additional 
load. He also stated that the wall is not on the survey so it is not known who 
owns the wall. The Commission asked if any geotechnical work was done and 
Mr. Mooney said no.  

 
 The Commission asked Mr. Mooney to come back at the 9/6/16 meeting with a 

drainage plan and the requested narrative and parking description, and stated 
that he could probably go before the ZBA in October. 

 
 
 
 
2. 120 Old Post Road 43 
 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
August 9, 2016 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

 Mr. Jonathan Kraut, attorney, Mr. Jeff Wyzinski, architect, Mr. Jerry Schwalbe, 1 
engineer, and Mr. Mike Galante, traffic engineer, were present for the application. 
Mr. Kraut stated that the Commission raised several questions at the last 
meeting and he would like to go through how each one has been addressed. He 
stated that the application met with the Osborn this past week and shared all of 
the information about the application. He noted that with regard to ambulance 
access, a diagram has been included in the Commission’s packet. He stated that 
there are areas within the parking structure that would be able to accommodate 
ambulances, but when responding to emergency calls at the site, they would still 
go to the main building first.  

 
 Mr. Kraut stated that there will be minimal exterior lighting because of the below-

grade parking. Mr. Wyzinski confirmed that all lighting will be shielded. He also 
stated that the light level will be zero footcandles at the property lines, except at 
the entrance and exit. The City Planner requested that cut sheets of the lighting 
fixtures be included with the plans. 

 
 Mr. Kraut stated that a SWPPP had been prepared and submitted and noted that 

it will be reviewed by the City Engineer. He stated that the site details were 
revised to include details about the green roof, specifically that it will include 6-8” 
of soil with an underdrain, with a combined retention of 2.2” of water. Mr. Kraut 
noted that the percentage reduction in the peak rate of runoff ranges from 20% in 
the 100-year storm to 41% in the one-year storm. 

 
 Mr. Schwalbe described for the Commission a diagram included in the SWPPP, 

which provided details about each design point in the stormwater system. He 
noted that DP3 sometimes experiences flooding in the existing condition; 
however, under the proposed condition, the volume at DP3 and the design point 
near the Osborn will be reduced. Mr. Schwalbe also noted that the green roof, an 
area of 26,000 sf, was treated as fully impervious (turf) in the stormwater 
calculations. Mr. Schwalbe stated that the size of the basin was increased in the 
revised plans. He noted that the roots of the vegetation will also take up water, 
but that was not accounted for in the storage calculations. He stated that the goal 
is to sustain the plants, but the water will not be recharging. He also noted that 
they have not met with the City Engineer yet but plan to soon. 

 
 The Commission discussed referral to the County. Mr. Schwalbe stated that the 

application needs a permit from the County and the plans are not developed 
enough for a full review. Mr. Kraut stated that they will meet with the County 
informally soon. 

 
 Mr. Galante reviewed the analysis of the emergency-access-only driveway that 

was prepared as the Commission requested. He noted that there would be a 
slight benefit to it being an exit-only driveway, specifically a one-second reduction 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
August 9, 2016 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

1 
2 
3 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 

in delay on Playland Parkway Access Drive. He stated that there are sufficient 
sight lines in each direction. 

 
 Mr. Galante stated that the intersection of Old Post Road and Playland Parkway 4 

Access Drive does not meet the criteria for signalization. He stated that an all-
way stop sign would improve the level of service from LOS F to LOS D in the AM 
peak period, which would be equivalent to a change from a 13-vehicle queue to a 
nine-vehicle queue. However, he noted that Old Post Road would experience 
delays where there currently are none, since it is uncontrolled in the existing 
condition. He also recommended against an additional stop sign at the Playland 
Parkway on-ramp because of the potential for rear-end collisions on Old Post 
Road due to the limited sight distance. 

 
 The Commission discussed the exit-only driveway and felt that it was a good 

change. Mr. Kraut noted that having two options for egress from the site would 
reduce driver angst. 

 
 The Commission asked about survey work. Mr. Schwalbe stated that it was in 

progress and he hoped to have it by the next meeting. The City Planner noted 
that the next step is the public hearing, but he would like to see more detail on 
landscaping, trash, lighting cut sheets, and construction phasing with a narrative. 
Mr. Kraut stated that they will provide a construction phasing timeline and he 
anticipates that the majority of the construction parking will be within the below-
grade structure because it will be the first element constructed. 

 
 The Commission stated that the applicant should discuss COs with the building 

department. It was unknown whether a separate CO would be needed for use of 
the parking structure prior to completion of the buildings. 

 
 
3. Rye Country Day School – Modification 31 
 

 Mr. Jonathan Kraut, attorney, Mr. Ronan Wilke of Peter Gisolfi Associates, and 
Mr. Chuck Utschig of Langan Engineering, were present for the application. Mr. 
Kraut noted that revisions were made to the angled parking area and the number 
of spaces was reduced from seven to six. Mr. Kraut also noted that the planting 
plan was revised to provide details on the number of trees to be removed and 
replanted. He stated that 10 trees will be removed and 98 trees will be planted. 
Mr. Kraut stated that two of the three pin oaks to be removed are in poor health. 
He also stated that a series of trees are proposed to be planted along Cedar 
Street, which will beautify the streetscape. Mr. Kraut noted that throughout the 
site there will be an overall net reduction of impervious surface area of 2,700 sf. 

 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
August 9, 2016 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

2 
3 
4 
5 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

 The Commission asked whether the proposed street trees might obscure the 1 
existing entrance sign to the campus. Mr. Kraut stated that they would revise the 
planting plan to ensure that the trees are spaced adequately to allow for better 
visibility of the sign. 

 
 The Commission asked about the proposed lighting. It was noted that the detail 6 

sheet, L-501, includes information about lighting. Mr. Kraut stated that it will be 
the same as what is currently on campus, except that all lighting will be LED.  

 
ACTION: Alfred Vitiello made a motion, seconded by Richard Mecca, to set the 

public hearing for Site Plan Application Number SP#364, which was 
carried by the following vote: 

 
Nick Everett, Chair:    Aye 
Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair:  Aye 
Andrew Ball:     Aye 
Laura Brett:     Absent 
Hugh Greechan:    Aye 
Richard Mecca:    Aye 
Alfred Vitiello:    Aye 
 

 
4. 180 Theodore Fremd Avenue 
 

 Mr. Rex Gedney, architect, and Mr. and Mrs. Talt, the applicants, were present 
for the application. Mr. Gedney noted that there had previously been an 
application for the subject property for development of a daycare, which was 
withdrawn. He stated that the present application is for a mixed-use building 
containing retail on the first floor along with electrical supply and service uses. 
Mr. Gedney stated that the site is in the B-1 zone and abuts both the B-1 zone 
and the B-6 zone. He noted that the rear yard setback is determined by building 
height per Section 197-64 of the Zoning Code and the existing building does not 
conform to this requirement. 

 
 Mr. Gedney stated that the existing building will be renovated in its same footprint 

and an addition and new second story will be constructed. He stated that the first 
floor will have a retail component and a service component with vehicle bays, 
while the second floor will contain office space and storage. 

 
 The Commission asked about the access easement shown on the site plan. Mr. 

Gedney stated that it is owned by the property owner to the rear of the site and 
that the applicant has full use of the easement. He noted that the building on the 
property to the rear of the site is on the property line. 

 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
August 9, 2016 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

 Mr. Gedney stated that the site is currently 98% impervious and the proposed 1 
project will reduce the amount of impervious area by 10%. He stated that the 
alley behind the building will be converted to gravel and no vehicles will be 
permitted to use it. The Commission asked about whether there was sufficient 
access to the vehicle bays considering the width of the driveway. Mr. Gedney 
stated that they may consider a 2-bay garage for easier access into the bays. 

 
 The Commission asked about the proposed drainage plan. Mr. Gedney stated 8 

that it had not been designed yet. Regarding refuse, Mr. Gedney stated that it will 
likely be collected by a private hauler and noted that he will define a refuse area 
on the plan. He noted that there will be minimal lighting, which will consist of site 
lighting for safety and some decorative lighting.  

 
 The Commission asked about the method by which the amount of parking was 

calculated. Mr. Gedney stated that the uses are retail and equipment storage on 
the first floor with office space and additional storage on the second floor. He 
noted that the office space and vehicles relate to the contractor’s business, while 
the retail relates to the business/service components. The City Planner asked Mr. 
Gedney to better describe the parking needs and demands for the service 
business and retail components, including what activities will take place and the 
number of employees, and to provide a rationale for the reduction in parking. 

 
 Mr. Gedney stated that he will provide a copy of the easement to the 

Commission. He also noted that the building has been vacant for a long time and 
the application represents an opportunity to eliminate an eyesore and develop an 
attractive use on the site. 

 
 
5. Minutes  
 

 The Commission reviewed the minutes from the July 19, 2016 meeting and made 
minor revisions. 

 
ACTION: Alfred Vitiello made a motion, seconded by Richard Mecca, to approve the 

minutes from the July 19th meeting as amended, which was carried by the 
following vote: 

 
Nick Everett, Chair:    Aye 
Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair:  Aye 
Andrew Ball:     Aye 
Laura Brett:     Absent 
Hugh Greechan:    Aye 
Richard Mecca:    Aye 
Alfred Vitiello:    Aye 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
August 9, 2016 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

1  


	Rye City Planning Commission Minutes

